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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Elliott-Donaldson House, situated on a two-and-one-half-acre lot on Church
Street (U.S. Hwy. 45) in Okolona, Mississippi, is a five-by-three-bay two-story
frame structure with gabled roof and central entrance. Projecting from the
house is a three-bay portico supported by octagonal columns. The central bay
of the portico projects beyond the other bays, is gabled, supported by matched
octagonal columns, and contains doorways on the first and second floors. The
second-story door provides access to a balcony.

The basic form of the house maintains the traditional symmetry of the Greek Revival
style, but gives evidence of construction at a time when that tradition was being
altered by the introduction of whimsical modes. Such elements as the turned
balusters of the balcony railing, octagonal columns, pedimented windows and door-
ways, and large window panes all give the building the eclectic architectural
flavor of the years 1855-60.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Elliott-Donaldson House, at Okolona, Mississippi, is one of two pre-Civil War

structures in Chickasaw County.

local tradition holds that it was built by a man named Sheppherd.
known as the place to which Confederate General Nathan Bedford Forrest was brought to
recover from a wound sustained in a Union raid on Okolona in January, 1865.

Although the early history of the house is uncertain,
The house is locally,

In 1976 the Elliott-Donaldson House was bought by Mr. and Mrs. Harold H. White, Jr.
The owners have since completed a restoration of the house.
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7-DESCRIPTION
E1Tliott-Donaldson House
Okolona, Mississippi

The Elliott-Donaldson House is a two-story gable-roof frame structure situated
on Church Street (U.S. Hwy. 45) approximately one-hundred feet back from the right-
of-way. A portico supported by continuous, two-story, octagonal columns occupies
three bays of the five-bay facade. The central bay of the portico is ornamented
by a broken-bed pediment which projects beyond the other bays and is also supported
on octagonal columns. This composition frames pedimented double-leaf doorways on
both the first and second floor levels with the second-story doorway providing
access to a balcony. The facade windows are sash-type with two-over-two glazing
configuration, and each is shuttered and has pedimented window heads. Those of the
first story extend to floor Tlevel.

The plan of the original portion of the house, built ca. 1850, was that of the
typical, two-story, single-pile "glorified pioneer house" containing a central stair-
hall flanked by a room on either side. This section of the house is constructed of
heavy timber frame and has massive hand hewn beams and sash sawn studs of oak, all
of which are mortised and pegged together. The most unusual feature of the house
is that its two chimneys were not located at the ends of the building, but, rather,
exterior to the rear wall.

About 1880 a shed-roof addition was made along the rear of the house. The roof of
this addition extended the rake of the original gable to produce a saltbox form which
was a very unusual practice in Mississippi. The entire building was roofed with
wooden shingles (most of which remain under later roofing) at that time. In the 1940's
another addition, consisting of a shed-roof section built parallel to the former
addition (but with different roof pitch) and of a gable-roof garage which formed an
ell with the rest of the house, was constructed onto the rear elevation.

Both the exterior and interior of the original house were 1ikely decorated in
very simple Greek Revival style when first constructed but were remodeled in the
late nineteenth century, probably when the first major addition was made. The main
entrance is composed of double doors with segmental-arched windows in the upper
portion of each and leads to the central hall which is flanked on the north by a
dining room and on the south by a parlor. The quarter-turn stairway (with winders),
Tocated in the central hall, has turned balusters, a rosewood rail, and a tapered
octagonal newel with faux-bois panels, all of which appear to have been added to
the stair during the Victorian remodeling. Each doorway in the hall is ornamented
by a pediment made from the same wood moulding used to produce the pedimented window
heads on the facade. The simple, pilastered mantels of the four original rooms remain
in place, however, the ones located in the parlor and dining room have been altered
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by application of Victorian, foliated, plaster medallions.

In the late 1970's, the Elliott-Donaldson House was refurbished with the
original portion of the structure being basically pereserved in its Victorian form.
The additions were remodeled at that time to create a modern kitchen, breakfast
room, bedroom, den, study, and bath. No significant interior details remain
in the additions.

*Description based on inspection of the Elliott-Donaldson House, May 27, 1980
by Kenneth P'Pool, Architectural Historian with the Mississippi Department of
Archives and History.
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8-SIGNIFICANCE
E11iott-Donaldson House
Okolona, Mississippi

Architecturally the Elliott-Donaldson House is one of the finest houses in
Chickasaw County and possibly the finest in Okolona. Due to the ravages suffered
by the county during the War Between the States, very 1ittle of a tangible nature is
left of its antebellum history. This is especially true of Okolona which was burned
twice by Union soldiers during the course of the war, leaving only two known
antebellum structures (0lga Reed Pruitt, "Okolona: The Jewel of the Prairie Lime
Belt of Northeast Mississippi" in A History of Chickasaw County, Mississippi
Houston, Mississippi: The Times-Post, 1936 , p. 31).

The oldest portion of the house was probably built about 1850 and is entirely
constructed of heavy oak timbers joined by mortise and tenon joints, a practice which
was waning by that date. The design of the structure was typical for the period
with the exception of the chimneys which were placed along the rear wall rather
than at the ends of the building. In 1876 the house was acquired by Edgar S. Elliott
(Chickasaw County, Mississippi, Deed Book JJ:331-2), and it is likely that he
effected the Victorian remodeling shortly after the purchase. It was during this
renovation that the portico, facade windows, and several doorways received their
pedimented treatment. The octagonal columns probably were also added at this time
in imitation of sveral antebellum buildings in near by Columbus which had skillfully
conscripted octagonal columns as well as other Gothic details, for their otherwise
typical white-pillared design. The two-story saltbox form of the house, created by
a shed-roof addition across the rear elevation, is also quite unusual for northeast
Mississippi.



itie Kllistt-Donaldson Housc
Okolona, Mississippi
Approximate plan of first floor
May, 1980
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